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CITY HALL BUILT 1889-90
In the year 1888 the idea entered the heads of the city fathers that Woodstock had reached a sufficient degree of importance to entitle her to a city building that would be a credit to the taxpayers and a delight to the eye. They had become tired of meeting in an attic, so to speak, and the fire department, the public library and other city property needed better shelter, so on June 1, 1888, the records show, Alderman W. W. Cook made a motion that the city purchase the John Bunker lot at the corner of Dean and Van Buren streets, which had remained vacant since the fire of 1871, on which to erect a suitable building for city purposes.
This motion met with opposition, the council voting to a tie on the question, and Mayor Joslyn, who was in the chair, voted in the affirmative, and the lot was purchased for $2,000, the order being drawn and the deed secured on July 6 of the same year.
On Sept. 10 of that year the council met and considered plans for a city building that had been submitted by Smith Hoag, an Elgin architect, and they were accepted, after making a few alterations.
On Jan. 4, 1889, the council voted to purchase brick for the city building from the McHenry Brick company.
On April 26 of that year the council ordered the public property committee to proceed to the construction of the building, said committee consisting of Aldermen Jewett, Diesel and Donovan. 
Started in 1889
Work was at once begun on the building, with S. Hoag and Simon Brink as overseers, but on account of the slowness in the arrival of materials, it dragged along at a slow rate. This was during the administration of Mayor John J. Murphy, who on June 18 resigned the office and the building was completed while Mayor Erastus E. Richards was in the chair, he having been elected at a special election on July 12, 1889, when he defeated John D. Donovan for the place.
On Aug. 2 of that year, it was voted to issue city hall bonds in the amount of $16,000 to provide money with which to complete the structure, and these, we believe, were the first bonds ever issued by the city.
At first it was intended to erect the building by day labor, and the first work was done in that manner, but on Aug. 9 the council entered into a contract with Mr. Hoag for the finishing of the building, the contract price being $26,000.
On Jan. 25, 1890, it was voted to seat the building with folding opera chairs, the motion having been made by Alderman Wm. B. Austin.
Dedicated in 1890
After much arduous labor by the members of the council, and especially the public property committee, the building was completed and accepted, and on Sept. 2, 1890, it was dedicated with an entertainment by Patti Rosa and her company, who produced "Margery Daw" before a large and delighted audience.
The city hall was constructed of white brick, trimmed with red sandstone and terra cotta, and is of beautiful architectural design. The tower, 90 feet in height, with its pretty, artistically arched observatory, surmounted by a flag staff, adds much to the beauty of the structure.
The main floor of the building is divided into a public library and reading room, police magistrate's office and council room and city auditor's and collector's office on the east side and the fire department on the west. In the basement is the city calaboose, which is seldom occupied, the steam heating plant and storage rooms.
The second floor is devoted to an opera house which for many years was operated under an arrangement with George W. Lemmers and Clinton E. Jones. This audience room, with a balcony above, will seat nearly 700 people, and has often been filled by large audiences listening to all kinds of entertainments, and public gatherings of various sorts.
It is beautifully decorated, with a steel ceiling and all of the essentials for comfort.
Public Meeting Place
The stage is wide and deep, provided with two curtains that were works of art, the first curtains having been the work of Sosman & Landis, of Chicago, with a view of the Bay of Naples embellishing it.
It was not many years ere the building was freed from debt, the last bonds having been redeemed prior to 1900, and since that, date several important improvements have been made on the building, a structure that had long been needed for the prosecution of the business of the municipality, and to furnish an audience room for the people aside from the court room at the court house.
The symmetry, architectural beauty and massiveness of the building readily attract the eyes of chance visitors to the city, and Woodstock people even yet do not tire of gazing upon it with admiration.
